S K PANIGRAHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Plot No. 27, Vasant Pushpa, Anand Nagar, Atrey Layout, Nagpur - 440022
Mob. : 9822368032, E-mail : caskpanigrahi2017 @gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of VISHVARA! ENVIRONMENT

PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”}, which com prise the Balance Sheet as at 315*March 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows & Statement of Changes of Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Com pany
as at 31st March, 2023, its Profit, total comprehensive income, its Cash Flows and changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit Standalone Financial Statem ents in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(20) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Stardalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Com panies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the iCAV's Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters th at, in our professionai judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period, These
matters were addressed in the cantext of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole, and in forming our apinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our rep
including in relation to these matters. Accerdingly, our




procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Caphalisation and useful life of tangible and
intangible assets

Significant judgment and estimates are involved with
respect

to the following matters of tangible and intangibles
assets:-

a) The items of property, plant and equipment that
are ready for is intended use as determined by the
management have been capitalised. ludgement is
invelved to  determine that the aforesaid
capitalisation meet the recognition requirement
under Ind AS including determination of whether the
criteria for intended use of the management has
been met. Refer Note 4(a) and 4{b)} of the Standalone
Financial Statements,

Our audit procedures included and were not limited
to

the following:-

* Assessed the nature of the additions made to
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets on
a test check basis to test whether they meet the
recognition criteria as set out ind AS 16 — Property,
Plant and Equipment and Ind AS 38 — Intangible
Assets, including intended use of management

B. IT systems and controls over financial reporting

YWe identified IT systems and controls over financial
reporting as a key audit matter for the Company
because its financial accounting and reporting
systems are fundamentally refiant on IT systems and
IT controls to process significant transaction
volumes, specifically with respect to revenue and raw
material consumption.

IT general controls over program development and
changes, access to program and data and T
operations, {T application controis and interfaces
between IT applications are required to be designed
and to operate effectively to ensure accurate
financial reporting.

Our procedures included and were not limited to the
following:

» Assessed the complexity of the IT environment by
discussion with the head of IT and Management of
the Company and identified IT applications that are
relevant to our audit.

» Assessed the design and evaluation of the
operating effectiveness of IT general controls over
program development and changes, access to
program and data and IT operations by discussion
with the head of IT and Management of the
Company.

» Assessed the design and evaluation of the
operating effectiveness of IT application controls in
the key processes impacting financial reporting of the
Company by discussion with the head of IT and
Management of the Company.

* Assessed the operating effectiveness of rontrols
reiating to data transmission through the different IT
systems to the financial reporting systems by
discussion with the head of IT and Management of
the Company.

information Qther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report TYhereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,




Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

Inventory
The Stock as on 31.03.2023 has been physically verified by the Company and has provided us

the report of the same. We have taken the report of such stock physically verified by the
Company. Also, as the Standards on Auditing, which highlight that the auditor may be able to
perform alternative procedures to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. We have
considered suggested potential alternative procedures that might allow us to achieve this
objective. The procedures taken in to consideration are circumstances specific, and we have
exercised professional judgment as to their practicability.

Property Plant and Equipment:

The Property Plant and Equipment as on 31.03.2023 has been physically verified by the
Company and has provided us the report of the same. We have taken the report of such Fixed
Assets verification performed by the Company. Also, as the Standards on Auditing, which
highlight that the auditor may be able to perform alternative procedures to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence. We have considered suggested potential alternative
procedures that might allow us to achieve this objective. The procedures taken in to
consideration are circumstances specific, and we have exercised professional judgment as to

their practicabitity.

Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) expenditure
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has incurred expenses towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), before the balance sheet date as per the details given

in Note no 35.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the Ind AS prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records.i




for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
tevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in piace with reference
to financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.




4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
refated disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, tc modify our opinion. QOur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disciosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report an Other Legal and Repulatory Reguirements

1. Arequired by the provisions of Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (21} of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and expianations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} tn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.




{c)

(d}

(e)

(f)

{g}

(h}

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31
March, 2023 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in
accordance with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report
that being private company this clause is not applicable to the company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred o the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person{s} or entity (ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”} or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and

belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or e




(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasocnable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and {ii) of Rule
11(e}, as provided under (a) and {b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. No equity dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

FOR 5,K, PANIGRAHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 0146101W

M.NO. 042171
UDIN: 230421 71BGTHIG082

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: 20" September 2023



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of VISHVARAJ ENVIRONMENT PRIVATE
LIMITED (The Company’) of even date. We report that:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

(v)

{a}

(b}

(c)

(d)

{e)

(a)

(b)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets;

fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

The company is having land bearing Plot no D-13 in Chandrapur (Tadali}) Growth
Centre, Dist-Chandrapur, which was taken on lease from MIDC for 95 years.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets or both during the vear,

In our opinion and According to the information and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have heen initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is approgriate. No discrepancy of
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical
verification of stocks by the management as compared to book records.

The Company has not been sanctioned during any point of time of the year, working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

During the year the Company has not made investments in, nor provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties except to its subsidiaries as mentioned in Note no 29(C).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans, investment, guarantees, and security made in subsidiary
company. Further Section 186 of Companies Act 2013 not applicable to company
being the company is in infrastructure business. [Refer Note no 27}

The Company has not accepted any depaosits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable.




(vi)

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section
148(1} of the Act, for the services rendered by the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained and in our opinion; prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained by the Company.
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete;

{vii) (a) According to the records made available to us, Company is regular in depositing

(viii)

(ix)

undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
autharities, According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no statutory
dues referred to in sub-clause (a} that have not been deposited on account of any
dispute. [Refer note 42{a)]

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the income-tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year.

{(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are
of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of ioans or other
borrowings of in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
declared willful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or other lender:

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds
raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix){d} of the Order is not applicable.

{e} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, accordingly,
clause 3(ix) {e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies. Accordingly, clause 3l
Order is not applicable. 7




{x) (a} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x){a)
of the Order is not applicable. :

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3{x}{b) of the Order is not applicable,

(xi) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit.

(b) No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Ruies, 2014 with the Central Government;

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints had been received by the Company

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to accounts of
the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) The Company has Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. The reports of the internal Auditors for the period under audit were
considered.

{xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during

the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.

(xvi) {a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b} of the
Order is not applicable.

(¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CiC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)ic) of the Order is not

applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have




{xvii}

(xviii)

{xix}

(xx)

any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,

On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures
performed and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date; We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

Based on our examination, the Company has transferred fund under section 135 of
the Act as per details given in are Note no 35 of financial statement.

FOR S.K. PANIGRAH! & ASSCCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 0146101W

PROPRIETOR

M.NO. 042171
UDIN: 23042171BGTII16082

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: 20'" September 2023



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub—section 3 of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of VISHVARAJ
ENVIRONMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (The Company’) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statement of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the interal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating




obtaining an understanding of internal financial controis over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIALS REPORTING

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the financial statement for external purpose in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedure that

1. pertains to maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly
reflect the transaction and disposition of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transaction are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles ,and that receipts and expenditure of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.,




OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March 2023, based on the interna
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR S.K, PANIGRAHI & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 0146101W

PROP
M.NO. 042171
UDIN: 23042171 BGTH16082

PLACE: NAGPUR
DATE: 20* September 2023




Vishvara| Environment Private Limited

Notes te the financial statements for the year endad 315t March 2023
{Armount in iNR lakhs unless otherwise stated)
CIN:UTAS9BMH2008PTC 186950

VISHVARAS

SNFRONBENT #url i)

1 Corporate Infosmaticn

M{s Vishvarsj Environment Put ftd. (the Company) was incorporated under the Companies Act 1956 on 22nd September 2008 vide Registration
number U74295MMH20008PTC186950. The company is incorporated with the objective to take up, promete, prajects in india or abroad to purify
water, to make the water pallution free and reusable by using all types of systems, products, units, products plants for poltution controf used in alf
fields as a proprietor, ¢wner, agent, broker, consultant, know how pravider, franchiser and alse o run, manage, control, operate sewage
treatment plants, sewage reclamation plants, effluent recycling plants, chemicai and radicactive waste incinerators, odor control systems and
other simifar systems or products and refating to sanitation, health and hygiene sendces, waste disposal and/or management, and related

infrastructure projects,

Basis of preparation of financlal statements
The flnancial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the (ndian Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified under

Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules {as amended) from time to time and other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost comvention ang on accrual basis, except for certain financlal assets and
liabilities which have bean measured at fair value,

L4

Signiflcant accounting policies

Currant varsus non-curvent classification

The Company presents assets and kabilities in the balance sheet based on cutrent/ non-current ¢lassification. An asset is cassified 25 current when

+ Itis expected to be realised, ar is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normat operating cytle: ar
It is heid primarily for the purpose of trading; or
- ftis expected to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or
-+ The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless It is restricted from being exchanged or used to sette a liability for at least 12 months after the

reporting period,

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a fiablity is classified as current if:

s expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

#tis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting pericd: or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiability for at least 12 months after the reporting  period.
Terms of a liability that could result in its settiement by the lssue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not sffect this
classificatian.
All other liabilities are ¢lassified as non-current.

Daferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and fiabilitles.

Yhe principal accounting policles are set out below.

i} Revenue recognition
Revenue is recagnised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenuoe can be rediably
mezsured. Revenue comprises:

Ravenue is measured based an falr value of consideration received or receivable ang exciudes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. A
performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distnct good or service (or 3 bundle of goods and services) to the customer and is
the unit of account in Ind AS 115. A contraet's transaction price is aflocated to each distinct performance obfigation and recognized as revemue, as,
ot when, the performance obligation is satisfied. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to the

customer.

interest incame

interest income for ail debt instruments, measured at amartised cost ar fair vatve through other comprehensive income, is recagnised using the
effective interest rate {*EIR') method and shown under interest income in the statement of profit and loss. Interest income on interast bearing
financial assets classified as fair value through profit and foss is shown as interest incame under ther income.
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Accounting for Government Grants
Grants rom ine government are recegmsed at their Tar value where there & a reascnable assurance that the grant will ke received ang the

Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income,

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred incorne and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line hasis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
income.,

Operating jease

tease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Operating
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of prafit ard loss on a straight-ine basis over the lease term. The determination of
whether zn arrangement is |ar contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the Jease. The arrangement is, or
cantains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand & balance with bank in current accounts are to a known amount of cash and are subject to an

inslgnificant risk of changes In value.

Earrings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period [excluding other comprehensive income) attributable to
equity shareboidars (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the petiod. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss For the peviod attributable to equity sharehelders
and the weighted average nurmber of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive patential aquity shares except
when the results would be anti-gilutive.

Employee benefits
Shott-term benedits
Short-tarm employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount In the statement of profit and |oss for the year in which

the redated services are rendered.

Defined benefit plans
Post-employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which
the employes has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation

techalgques.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return an pfan assets {excluding interest)
and the effect of the asset ceifling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occar.
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit sthemes are charged to the statement of prefit and {oss of the year when the contribution to
the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations ather than the contribution payable to the Fung,

Taxation

a) Current Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to

the taxation suthorities. The tex rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted of substantively enacted by the
reporting date, Current taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax refates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equlty. Management periadically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
reguiations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where approgriate

b} Pefered Tax

[b) Deferred Tax:- Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differances between the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities in the Financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases usad in the computation of taxable profiv. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is
probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the deductble temporary differences, and the carry farward of unused tax losses can
be utilised. Deferred tax liabllities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settied
or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, The
carrying amount of Defarrad tax liabilitizs and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Progerty, plant and equipment.

Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at their asiginal cost of acquisition net of recoverable takes, trade discounts & rebates but includes freight
and other incidental expenses related to acguisition and instaflation of the corcerned assets less depreciation tifl date.

Company has adapted cast madel for all class of iterns of Froperty Plant and Equipment.

Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment is provided on straight line methad based an the useful lives, specified in Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

An Hem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inftlally recognised s derecognised upan disposal or when na future ecanomic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or jass arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proveads and the carrying amount of tha asset) is included in the staterment of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

The residua? values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year.
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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[x} intangible assets
intanglble assets with finite useful lives that are acguired separateiy are carded at cost less accumulated amortsation and accumulated
impairrnent losses, Amortisatian s recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful fives. The estimated useful iife and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for vn a prospective basis,
intangible assets with indefinite useful fves that are acquired separately are carrled at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

{xi} tmpelrment of non-Anancial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based cn
intemal{exteral factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. The cecoversble amount is the
greater of the asset’s net seliing price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are distounted to the present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the assets. An
impairment Ioss Is charged to the statement of profit and foss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. After impairment,
depreciation Is provided on the revised carrylng amount of the asset over its remaining useful tife. The impairment loss recogrized in prior
accounting periods is reversed by crediting the staternant of profit and (oss if there has bean a changa in the estimate of recoverable amount.

{xH} Foreign Currency transactions
The standalone financial staterments have been prepared in !ndian Rupees which is the functonal currency of the Company. Foreign currency
transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactian. Foreign currency denominated maonetary assets and
liabilities are retransiated at the ewchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet dates and exchange gains and losses arsing on settlement and
restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-maonetary assets and labilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
foreign currencies are not retranslated. The difference between exchange rates [closing rate and transaction rate} resulting into loss of Rs, 59.52
\akhs recognised in the statement of prefit and loss.

{kiii} Provisions, contingent iiabilities and contingent assets
a) Frovisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a resuit of 2 past event, it is probable that
an gutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ta the amount
of the ghligation. When the Compatvy expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset,
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the staterment of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discourted Lsing a current pre-tax rate that refieces, when appropriate, the risk
specific to the Hability. when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Provizions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no lpnger probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required toe settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

b} Contingent Habilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be canfirmed by the occurence ar non eccurence of
one of more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a prasent obligaticn which is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent Kability also arises ih extremely rare cases where there is a
liabitity that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. inforration en contingent labilities is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying econemic benafits is remote,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the vccurrence or Aon-
occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent asset is not recognized, but #ts
existence is disclosed in the financial statements.

{xiv] Financial instruments

A Bnancial instrument is any contract that gives rize to a financial asset of one antity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

A, Financlai assets

a) initlal recognition and measurement

Financiat assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial assets are recognized inftially at falr value plus trapsaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset except for financial assets classified as fair value through prafit or loss,

b} Subsequent measuremant

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
i} Debt instruments measwed at amartised cost

i} Debt instruments measured at fair value theough other comprehensive income {FVTOCH

#ii] Debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

v} Equity Instruments measured at PYTOC! or FYTRL




Vishvaraj Envivonment Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2023
{Amount in INR lakhs unfess otherwise stated)
CIN:U749059MH2008PTC 186950

VISHVARAF

ENVIRTRBIENT P, L1,

Debt lestruments
The subseguent m ement of debt nstruments depends on their classiication. The tiassification depends on the Company's business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

i) Debt instruments measured at amartised cost

Debt instruments thak are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or Ioss an a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and s not part of a hedging
retatignship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is disclosed as interest Income in the statement of profit and 1oss using the effective interast rate method.

ii} Debt instruments measured at FVTOC

Debt instruments that are held for callection of contractual cash flows and for sefling the financial assets, where the assets cash fiows represent
solely payment of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL Mavements in the Larrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest income which are recognised in statement of profit and foss. When the firancial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the OCI is reclassified from equity 1 statement of profit and loss. Interast
income from these financial assets is disciosed as interest income in the statement of profit and Ioss using the effective interest rate method.

Tii] Debt instruments measured at FYTPL

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOC! are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Debt instrements
which are held for trading are classified as FVTPL A gain or lass on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
lass and is not part of a hedging refationship is recognised and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period In which It arises.
Interast income from these financiat assets is incduded in ather income.

i} Enuity Instruments {other than investmant in associakes, joint venture compz2niss and subsidiaries

All equity investraents in scope of fnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as FYTPL. The
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair valge. The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The dagsificatian s made on initial recognition and is irrevocale.

If the Company decides to dassify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI, There is no recyding of the amaunts from OC! to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
Lompany may transfer the cumuiative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vatue with all changes recoghized in the statemert of profit and toss.

B. Derecognition of financlal assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

il The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financiat asset or

ii} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractus) obligation to pay the cash flows to one

ar more recipients.,

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transfersed substantiatly al! risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset. in such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Whera the entity has not transferred substantially al risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial assetis not derecagnised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financlal ssset. Where the Lompany retains control of the nencial
asset, the asset is contintied to be recognised to the extent of continuing invalvement in the financial asset.
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C. impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses {ECL} model to the following:
i} Financial assets measured 3t amortised cost
i} Financial assets measurad at fair value through other comprehensive ineome [FVTOCH)

Expected credit nsses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal 1o
it the tweive months expected credit losses (expected credit 1nsses that result from those default evants on the financial instrument that are

nossible within twelve after the reporting datel or
i} fulf lifetlme expected credit lasses (expected credit losses that result from all passible default events over the (Ife of the Ainancial instrument)

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk Bas not increased significantly, twelve months ECL is used to provide for impalerment
loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. ), in 2 subseguent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit rik since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss

allowance hased on twehe months ECL.

D. Financlal llzbililles
a} initlal recagnition and measurement

Fipanciat liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party ta the contractuat provisions of the instrument. The Campany determines
the ¢lassification of its financia! fiabifity at initial recognition. All financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except for financial {lahilities classHied as fair value through profit or lass,

b) Sub emant

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial Babifities are classified in two categories:
i} Financial liabilities measured at amaortised cast
i} Financiai liabilities measured at FYTPL ifair value through profit or joss)

i) Finanelal Kabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recogaition, financisl liability are subseguently measured at amortized cast using the EIR methad. Gains and losses ars recognised in
the staternent of profit and loss when the liahilitias are derecognised as well as through the EiR amortization process. Amortized cost is calcutated
Ly taking into account any discount or premium on aequisition and fee or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR, The EIR amoprtisation is included
in flnance casts #n the statement of profit and |oss.

] Financial liabilities measured at fair value shraugh profit or Joss [FYTPL)

Financial Hiabilities at FYIPL include financial liabitities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FYTPL
Financizl fiakilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabilities ar
FVYTRL are carried in the s{aterment of profit and loss at fair value with changes in falir valuse recagnized in the staterment of profit and ioss.

<} Derecagnition

A financial lability is derecognised when the abligation under the labifity Is discharged or cancelled ar expires. When an existing financial Kability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
excthange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liakility, The differsnce in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and [oss.
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{xv) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial Instruments, suth as, investment in debt and equity instruments at fair value at each reparting date.

Fair value is the price that would be raceivad to self 2n assat or piaid to transfer 2 liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value messurement is basad on the presumption that the transaction to self the asset or transfer the liability takes
place aither;

* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or & liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or ligbility,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best Interest.

The Company uses vafuation technigues that ave appropriate in the citeurnstarces and for which sufficient data are availabie to measure fair valye,
maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minimising the use of unabservable nputs.

All assets and liabilitles for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the financial statemnents are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the Jowest lave! input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ level 1 — CQuoted junadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
* level 7 — Valuation technigues for which the Jowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observabie
® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservabie

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers, if any,
have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement as 2 whole) at the end of mach reporting period.
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Asat As at As at
Particulars NOtes | s 1sx March 2023 315t March 2022 1st Aprit 2024
hssets
LNon-curmnt assets
Property, plant and equipment Aa) 1,294.71 42311 112.96
ntangible assets 4{b) 308.10 93.65 n
Financial assets
|, Investments Sfal 2,837.45 1,999,656 829.09
i. Trade receivables Bia) 456,26 a987.43 545.74
iii. Dther firanciat assets s{b) 1,047.21 600.45 243,01
fv. Loans & Advances 5ic) 22.506.00 16,589.80 16,458 .00
Deferred tax assets 14 - 26.21 33.59
Other non-current assats & 302795 2,711.53 151954
Current assets
Inventories 7 5,198.75 1556.46 148257
Financizl assets
i, Trade receivables &a) 35,281.27 11,523.07 591015
ii, Cash and ¢ash eguivalents B} 1,765.01 58202 ?27.0%
fii. Bank balances ather than [ii} above Ble] 10,035.68 2232359 1433.40
iv. Loans & Advances Sic} 56,78 158.41 1,982.67
Qther current assets & 3,835.12 110192 966.63
[Total assets 87,657.09 A0.098.30 32,247,137
Equity and liabilitles
Equity
Share capital ] 7.100.00 £,612.48 4490.4%
Other aquity 10 22,660.95 14,597 31 14,548.67
Liabilities
Non-currint liabHltles
Financial Babilities
i, Borrowings 11{a) 44.42 105,61 19.29
ii. Other finandlal liabilities 1iih) 10,683.25 665738 7.447.14
Provisions 12 167.32 116.12 a0.51
Deferred tax liabilities 14 197 . -
Current lfabilivles
Financial liabil#tias
| Borrowings 11fa) §,182 17 56.58 3,212.58
ii. Trade pavables
-Due Lo mitro, small and medium enterprises 15 fa) 546.14 287.85 31838
-Due to others 15 (a} 5.229.29 1.126.41 3,417 38
Frovisions 12 16,459.56 3,650.10 2,604 .24
Current tax lighilities {net) 18 - 298.55 -
Other current Fahitities 13 7,576.02 589 6% S8.48
‘otal equity and llabllities i S?QST.Q 40,098.30 25247.17
1Sumrnanf of slgnfﬁca nt accounting policles E]
1-45
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our repart of even date
For 5 K Panigrahi & Assaci For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Vishvaraj Envirenment Private Limived
Arun Lakhanj Sidhaartha Lakhanee
Managing Director Divector
DIN: 0293583 DIN: 03610569
Place ;: Nagpur Suresh Agiwal Amit Sonkusare
Pate: 20th September 2023 Chief Financkal Dificer Company Secretary
M.NO-F11_§~53
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As per our report of even date

For 5 K Panigrahi & Assocl
Chartered Accountants
F R N: 0146101W

Partner
M. No. 042171
UDIN:230421718GTHI6082

|Place : Nagpur
Date: 20th September 2023

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of the financial statements,

|{Amount In INR lakhs uniess otherwise stated) ENVINONMENT Pt Lid
CIN-U74959MHZD08PTC1R6950
i For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars Notes March 2023 March 2022
income
Revenue from operations 17 50,280,78 23.092.63
Orther income 18 4,648.53 67.96
Total income 54,929.30 13,160.59
Expenses
Cast of Operations 18 3742039 15,056.828
Emplovee bengfits expense 20 3,973,588 2848 82
Finance cost FH 906.94 403.52
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 128.69 349.38
Chther administrative expenses 23 3.974.43 257167
Total expenses 46,404.32 205027
{Profit before tax 8,524.98 2,640.33
Tax eNpense:
Current Tax 14 [1,234.21) {72407}
Adjustrment of tax relating to earlier periods 14 {12.53) {4.62)
Defarred tax credit 14 {28.18) [5.38)
Total tax expenses {1.274.92} {735.07)
Profit for the year ?'250.06 505.25
Other comprehensive income
Frtems that will not be reclassified to profic or loss
.Remeasurements of defined employee henefit 25 (&04][ 383
Total ather comprehenyive Income @.M}I 3RS
Total camprehensive Income for the year net of tax ?!242-01 1!909.10
Profit for the year attributabie to equityholders of the Company 7,242.02 1,905.10
Earnings per equity share (nominal vatue per share of INR 16 each):
Basic and dikstad sarning per equity share (Rs) 24 1620 14.84
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
145

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vishvaraj Envirenment Private Limited

Arun Lakhani
Managing Director
DIN: 00294583

Geery —

Suresh Agiwal
Chief Financiaf Officer

/ Sidhaartha Lakhanee

Director
DIN: 03610

Amit Sonkusare
Company Secratary
M. No-F11B53
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. Forthe yesr ended | For the year ended 315t

Partivulars 315t tarch 2023 March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit after tax as per profit and loss A/c 7.252.02 L909.1D
Agtd:-
Provision for Tax 1,284.92 735.07
Depreciation 128.65 3%.38
interest on Loan B other finance cost 906,94 403,52
bass: Profit ort sale of Investments in shares ’ (833.79) -
Less: Dividend income (360000} {3.85
Operating Prafit befare Working Capitat changes 5,118.78 3,083.22
leemem in Working capital:

Increase/{Decrease] in trade payabies {1,638.83) 3467850
[Increasel/Decrease in Inventaries {3,642.28}' {73.89)
FDecrease)fincrease in Qther financizl liabilities 13,025.87 (?89.}'5}i
fincrease/f{Decrease) in other current Habifities £,586.11 431.4%
tncrease/(Decrease} in current tax labilities fnet) {298.55) 298.55
increase/{Decrarse) in Provisions 12,860,656 1.071.47
lincrease)/Decrease in trade receivables {23,237.03) {6,064.59)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial 2ssers (846,76} (357.43)
{increasel/Decrease in other current assets 12,737.21) {135.79)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current assets [B16.22} {691.59)
Cash generated ftom f [usad in} operations 5,194,594 51023
Direct taxes Paid [1,246.74. [?28.68;
Net eask generated from aperating activities {A) 3,947.80 (228,47}

£Zxsh flow from investing ackivities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipments {955.87) {343.06)
Purchasse of intangible assets urder development (258.87) 96.40)
[Purchasalfsale of Investments (837.79) {1,170,58}
Profit on Sale of investrment in shares of subsidiary 83178 B
JChange in Loans & Advances 15,815.57} 1,691.46
Dividend ncome 3,600.00 385
Hict tash used In investing activitier (8] {3,334.31) 85.26
Cash fiow from Anancing activities:
Procesds/[Repayment) from borrowlngs 8,070.40 (3,059.68]‘
Interest on Loan & other finance cost [906.54) 1403.52)
Change in Equity Share Capital -Bonus Issue . 4,504 90
Proceed fram Right issue of equity shares 4%7.52 1,217.09
Decreased in general reserve due to honus issue - (4,904.30]
Security Premium ergated fram Right Issue 1,217.08 304443
Reserves utilised for dividend 13%5.47) -
Met Cash flow from financhng activities IC) B,42260 788,32 |
|Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+£) B,986.09 655,12
Cash and cash equival at the heginning of the periad 4,81%,61 1. 160.4%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the perlod 118010 2,815.61
Cash ard cash equivalents comprise of the followings;
i. Cash nn hand 792 207
ii. Balances with banks
a. Current accaunts 175810 575,55
b. Balance with banks in fixed depasit 1003568 2,233 59
11.801.7 2.815.51
Summary of significent accounting polickes 3
The accomparying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1-45
AS peer our report of aven data
[Netes:
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" set out in Ind AS 7"Statement of Cash Flows™
For S K Panigrahi & Assogipte™r """ e For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartersd Accotntan < D , Vishwara] Environmant Private Limited
FRN: 014610t W ;
l‘\‘
74// g /. :
N S gL E 1y
¢ e Anm Lakhani haartha Lakhanee
p Managing Director Girector
DIN: 00254583 DN 03610569
Place : Nagpur Suresh Agiwal Amft Sonkusare
Date: 20th September 2023 Chief Financial Offcer Company Secretary
l M.No-F11RS3




VISHVARAS

Vishvaraj Envirenment Private Limited
Staternent of Changes in Equlty %

[Amount in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated) ENVIRGAMENT Put. Lict
CIN:U74999MHZ00BPTC 186950
{a) Equity Share Capital
Particular Number of Equity Amaunt
Shares {in lakhs)
Balance as at April 31, 2021 4,904,900 430.43
Change in equity share capital * 66,045,100 6,12199
Balance as at March 31, 2022 71,000,000 661248
Change in equity share capitat ** u A487.52
Balance as at Maech 31, 2023 71.000,000 7,100.00
“For breck up refer schedule 5 {A)
** During the year company received the finol call on right issues of shares no 170,46, 100 & Rs 2 36/-
{b] Other equity
Perticutars NOteS  petained earnings Sub Total Tetal
As at April 01, 2021 10 14,548.67 14,548.467 14,548.67
{+} Profit for the year 1,905.25% 1,905.25 1,905.2%
{-) Utilised for Bonus tssue {4,904, 50} {4,904.80) {4,904.50}
As at March 31, 2022 11,552.87 11,552 87 11,552,387
{+) Profit For the year 7,242.02 7,242.02 7,242.02
[+) Gther comprehensive inceme (Net of tax) - - -
{-} Utilised for Dividend (395.47)
As at March 31, 2023 18E399.42 18{?94.89 18,794.89
Particulars NOtes  cecurity Premium  Sub Total Tatal
As at April 01, 2021 10 - - -
{+) Addition during the year 3,044.43 3,044.43 3,044.43
As at March 31, 2022 3,044.43 3,044 .43 3,044.43
(+) Addition during the yaar 1,217.09 L217.08 1,217.09
As at March 31, 2023 4!261.53 4!261.53 4,261,53
Summary of slignificant accounting policies 3
The zccompanying notes are an integral part of the financiai 1-45
Statements,
As per our report of even date
For 5 K Panigrahi & Associa . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited

Arun Lakhani

Chartered Accounta
F R N:(1a5101W

\ Managing Director Director
M. N¢. 042171 DIN: 00294583 DiMN: G3510569
UCIN:23042171RGTHIE082 =
Piace : Nagpur Suresh Agiwal Amit Sonkusare
Date: 20th September 2023 Chiaf Financdial Officer Company Secretary

M.No-F11853




Vishvaraf Environment Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

(Amount In INR lakhs uness otherwise stated)
CIt:U74599MH2008PTC1RE950

Afa} Property, plant and equipment

Flant machinery

Feurnitura

Computer

Electrical

Particul La ildi Vehicles T
articulars nd Building and equipment  and fixtures eh System Instailations otal
B BT AT
A5 at April 01, 2021 (deemed cast)* - 2.55 5366 3.57 44.83 34.29 2.56 141.86
Additions - 2372 231.05 8.20 17.87 62.13 14.23 357.16
Dispasals/Adiustments - - pi 142 - 0.43 .60 1574
-
As at Maych 33, 2002 - 246.27 2rrol 10.14 62.70 3599 10.57 483.28
Additions In 75.15 147.18 288.29 21.38 120,52 13.37 967 54
Disposals/Adjustments - 0.00 41.33 {0.28 0.04 5.42 .64 47,15
As at March 31, 2033 331.30 101.42 382.86 299.27 8404 21149 23.30 1,433.67
As at April I, 2921 0.04 8.02 114 8.06 10.82 068 28.90
Charge for the year 105 767 07ra 476 17.490 0.79 3291
DisposalsfAdjustments - 1.02 Q.49 - - ¢.13 164
As at March 31, 2022 - 1.09 14.67 144 1281 28.82 1.33 60.17
Charge for the period - 2.68 12.99 6.02 782 4547 1.30 84,27
Disposals/Adiustments - {0.65] 0.05 0.2 5.52 oM 5.48
As at March 31, 2023 3.77 35.31 7.41 20.63 69.48 2.39 138.96
L - L = L ——
Net eariink amoont
As at Aprit §1, 2021 (deemed cost)* 2.51 45 54 a4.37 36,78 23.37 1.28 112,94
As &t March 31, 2022 - 2517 26234 5.30 49.89 67.16 5.24 42311
As at March 31, 2023 131.30 97.65 34755 291.86 6343 14201 2681 1,294.71
»Cost as at Asril 01, 2021 is calculated as shown bafore :
- . Plant machinery Furniture Computer Electrical
rticulars d Vehi T
Particuter Lan Buflding and equipment  and fixtures Ieies Systerm  installations otaf
Gross carrying amount as per previgus - 2.55 53.66 357 4483 34,29 2.86 141.86
GAAP - - - -
Accumulated depreciation - 0.04 8.02 1.19 8.06 10.92 0.68 2890
Deemed cost - 2.51 45.64 2.37 36.78 23.37 2.28 112.95
Notas:

1 *The Cornpany has elacted 1o carry valve of its Property, Plant a2nd E
i.e. April 1, 2021 as per the option permitted under ind A5 101 for th

quipments as recognised in its previous GAAP financials, as deemed ¢ost at the transition date
e first time adaption.




Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited

Notes te Financial 5tatements ‘g
{Amount In INR lakhs unless otherwise stated) f l’i{%ﬁﬁj
CIN:U74999MH 2008PTC1B6950

4{b} Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2021 (deemed cost)* 9.04 5.04
Additions 96.40 96.40
Disposais/Adjustiments - -
As at March 31, 2022 105.44 105,45
Additions 258.87 25897
Disposals/Adjustments 0.53 0.53
As at March 31, 2023 353,17 363.77
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 5.32 532
Charge for the vear 68.46 6.46
Dispasals/Adiustments - -
As at March 31, 2022 11,729 11.79
Charge for the period 48442 44.42
Disposals/Adjustments 0.54 0.54
As at March 31, 2023 55.68 55.2
T s =
Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2021 (deermed cost)* 27 371
As st March 31, 2022 53,65 93.65
As at March 31, 2023 308.1¢ 308.10
>Cost as at April OF, 2021 js calculated as shown beforg :
Partieulars Software TJotal
Gross Carrying amount as per previoys 89.04 904
GAAP - .
Accumulated depreciation 532 5.32
Deemed cost 3.71 an
Naotes:

1 *The Company has elected 1o carry value of its intangible Assets as recognised in its previpus GAAP financials, as deered coxst at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2021
as per the optlon permitted under ind AS 101 for the first time adoption.




Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements

{Amount in INR lakhs unless otherwlse stated}
CIN:U74395MH2008PTC 186350

5@ inwestments

VL

VISHVARAJ

EXVIRCNMENT PH. L1

Non-current Cureent
As at As at Asat As at As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 315t March 1st Apri 3istMarch  3ist March 1t April 2021
2023 2022 20231 2023 2022
Investment in Preference instruments ¢ 700.00 700.00 100.00 - .
Investment in Equity instruments 2,112.45 1,274 .66 104.08 - - -
fnvestment in shares of Co-operative Banks 2501 2501 25.01 - - -
2,837.45 1399 66 229.09 - - b
*The Company having investment in 0.01 % Redeembale Cummulative Preferance Shares of Rs,10 eoch i Vishvioraj Waste Woter
Manogement Pt Lid
5(b} Other financial assets
MNon-current Cuwrrent
As at As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars 3ist March 315t March 1st Apri! 81stMarch  3ist March 1st Aprit 2021
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 p
Security deposits 1,047 21 600,45 243.01 - - -
1,047.21 600.45 243.01 - - -
5(c) Loans & Advances
Non-current Lurrent
As at Asat As at Asat As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 31st March st April Iist March 31st March 15t Aprf 2021
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 o
Loans & Advances to related party 22,506.00 16,589.80  16,458.00 58.78 150.41 1.982.67
22.506.00 16589.80 15458.00 58.78 159.41 1,982.67
B Other assets
Non-current Current
As at Asat As at Asat Asat As at
Particulars 3ist March  31st March 1st April 3lstMarch  31st March 15t Aprl] 2021
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 P
Unsecured, considered good
Trade Receivable-Hetenticn 2,880.65 2,058.39 1,358.09 - - -
Advance to Creditors 131.21 137.2% 145.56 278.60 29508 250.53
Prepaid Expense - - - 518.14 195,06 21885
Prepaid Insurance - - - 7534 21.47 0.38
Advance given to employees - - B804 5.96 B.BS
Other Advances - - - 233.00 -
Balance with G5T Authorities - - 2,857.44 0198 389.66
Balance With tncome Authorities . - 71.55 48.37 9856
WCT Receivable 15.89 15.89 15.8% - - M
25027.75 2.211.53 1,519.54 3,839.12 1,301.91 966.63
? Inventorles Current
Asat As at As st
Particulars 315t March 3ist March
i
2024 2022 st Agril 2021
Stock at Site 4,78B.58 1,260.58 1,392.03
Goods in Transit 362.22 831 -
Work in Progress 47,95 278 58 90.54
5,198.75 1,556.45 1,482.57
B Financial assels
8{a) Trade receivables
Non-cutrent Current
As at As at As zr As at As at As gt
Particulars 31stMarch 315t March 1st April AistMarch  3lstMarch Ast AprH 2021
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 pr
Trade Receivables - related parties . . . 12,996.01 5,838.72 £97.38
Trade Receivabiles other 456,26 997,43 545.74 22,283.25 4,684 .35 5,212 78
Less: Aflowance for dou - - - - - -
456.26 9497.43 545.74 35,281.27




Vishvaraj Environment Private Lirnited

Notes to Financial Staterhents ?
{Amount ir INR lzkhs unless otherwise stated) ,5 {mﬁfﬁﬁj
CIN:U74999MH2Z008PTCI86950
Break-up of security details Non-turrent Current
Particulars As at As at As at Asat As at s at
31st March  31st March 1st April 31st March  31st March 15t April 2021
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022
Trade receivables {Unsecured - considered good) 456.26 9597.43 545.74 35,281.27 11,523.07 5,910.15
Trade receivables which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Trade receivatiles - credit impaired - - - - - -
Tatal 456.26 957,43 545. 4 3528127 11,523.07 5,910.15
Impalrment allowance {allowance for bad - - - - - -
and doubtful debis)
Trade receivables which have significant - - - - . -
increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Totai trade receivables 456,26 8997.43 545.74 35,281.27 11,523.07 55910.15

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss” (ECL)Y madel, for evaluating impainment of Financial Agsets other then those

measured al Fair Value Through Profit and Less (FYTPL).

Expecied Credit Losses are measurad through & Ioss allowsnce & an amount equal to:

+ The 12-months expecied credit [osses (expected credit Josses that result fram thuse defaull avents on the financial instrument that are possitle within 12
months afler the reporting date); or
« Full lifelime expected cradit ipsses (expected credit losses thal resull from af possible defaull events over the #fe of the financial Instrument).

For Trade Receivables the Company applies 'sirpiified appraach’ which requires expected kfetime logses 1o be recognised from initial recognition of the

recetuables. The Company uses historical default rates to determing impairment loss on the portiotio of \rade recelvables. At every reporling date these

hislonicat defaull rales ave meviswed and changes in the loreand-looking

in near future

d. The M,

are

of the Company is confident of recovery

For ather assets, the Company uses 12 manth ECL to provide for impaiment loss where there is a0 significant increase in credil risk, |f there is significant

increase i credil risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Trade Receivables Apeing as on 31.03.2023
Particulars

Less than 6
Monthks

& months-1
Year

1-2 Years

-3 Years

More than 3
Years

Total

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables considerad
good

34,591.48

689.79

302.18

51.48

102,59

35,737.53

[iif Undisputed Trade Receivables considered
daubiful

{ifiy Disputed Trade Receivables considered

go ggl

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivabies considered

| doubtful
Total

34,591.48

689.79

302,18

51.48

102,59

35,737.53

Trade Receivables Ageing as on 31.03.2022

Particulars

Lessthan 6
Months

6 months-1
Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3
Years

Totzal

{i} Undisputed Trade Receivables considered
| pood

10,273.41

1,249.66

472.68

200.36

324.39

12,520.49

(i} Undisputed ¥rade Receivables considared

doubtful

{iit} Risputed Trade Recaivables considered
[.-Bood

{iv} Disputed Trade Receivalles considerad
doubtful

Total

10,273.41

12,520.49




Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements g ¥/ 5 7
{Amount in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated) L sz tig
CIN:UTAS99MH2008PTCIRGI50
B{by) Cash and cash equivalents
Current
As at As at s at
Particulars A1st Marck  3lst March
2023 2002 ist April 2023
Cash in hand 7.92 2407 1.93
Balances with banks;
Balances with banks in Current Account 1,758.10 579.95 725.16
1,766.01 582.02 727.09
8(c}] Other bank balances
Current
As at As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 315t March
il 2021
2023 2023 1st April 20
Balances with banks in Fixed Deposits 10,035.68 2,233.59 1,433.40

10,035.68 2,233.5¢ 1,433.40

Break up of financial assets carried at

amortised cost Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at As at
31st March  31st March 1st April 31stMarch  31st March  1st April 2021
2023 2022 2021 208 2022
Trade receivable {refer note 8(al} 456.26 997 43 545 .74 35,281.27 11,523.07 5,910.15
Cash and cash eguivalents {refer note &{b)} - - - 1,766.01 582.0% 727.09
Other bank balances {refer note 8{c)} - - - 10,035.68 2.233.59 1,433.40
Loan {refer note 6(d)} 22,506.00 16,585.80  16,458.00 58.78 159.41 1,882 67
Other financia! assets {refer note 5(h}} 1,047.21 &a00.45 243,01 - - -

24,009.46 18,187.67 17,246.75 47,141.75 14,438.09 10.053.31
Total financial assets carried at amortised cast




Vishwvaraj Enviranment Private Limited

Notes to Financlal Statements %E VISHYVARA

{Amount in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated) EVVRCYMENT vt it
CIN:U74999MH200BPTCIERISD

9  share capitai

As at Asat As at
Particulars 3ist March |31st March 20221 1st April 2021
023
Authorlsed shares
Equity Shares Face Vaiue of Rs. 10 eath 10,005.00 10,005,400 1,005.00
3000500 10005001 " 1,00506 ]
tssued shares, subscribed and pald-up shares
Equity Shares Face Value of Bs. 10 each 7,100.00 5,395.39 490 .40
Equity Shares Face Value of Rs, 10 each (No. 1,70,45,100 @ Rs.7.14/-pald up &
Rs.2.86/-unpaid) - 1,217.08 -
2,100.00] 5,612.48 480,49
A. Reconciliation of number of shares
Equity shares
At the beginning of the period 71,000,000 4,504,900 4,904,900
Chenge during the year
1- Banus shares issued - 49,043,000 -
2- Right shares issued - 17,045,100 -
At the end of the period 71,000,000 71,000,000 4,904,900

8. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has enly one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10/- per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per
share. Each shareholder is entitled to dividend, if declared by the Company in proportien to their respective holding in the company,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders.

C. Shares held by halding and its subsidiasy
Qut of eguity shares issued by the Company, shares held by Itz holding company in its subsidiary are as below:

Ag at
) As et As at
Particulars MstMarch ) March 2022 15t Aprit 2021
2023
Premier Financial Services Ltd
Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid 70,971,020 70,971,020 4,902,898
D. Detalls of shareholders holdings more than 5% shares
As at As at As at
marticl Iist March 2023 31st March 2022 st April 2021
artievlars Numberof  Percentage of Numberof Percentage of Numbercf  Percentage of
shares heid Holding shares held Halding shares held Holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fuily paid
Fremier Financial Services Ltd 70,971,020 §9,96% 70,971,020 35 _GF 5% 4,902 898 99.96%
E- Change in shareholding pattern
Particular | shares at 32 Mar 2023 | shares st 31 Mar 2022
Promoter Name Type of Shares Nos, % Holding Nas. % Hoiding % Change
Premier Financial Services Ltd Eq;sgw:](()l\]w: 70,971,020 99.95 70,971,020 89.95 )

70,971,020 99.96 70,971,020 29.95




Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited

Nates to Financial Statements %E VISHVARAS

{Amaunt in INR lakhs unless atherwise stated) ENVIRONMEST Pt Lid!
CIN:U74099MH2008PTC186950

10 Otherequity

As at Asat As at
Particulars 3ist March  31st March 2022 ist April 2021
2023,
A. Surplus in statement of prefit and ioss
11,552.87 14,548.67 2,768.71

Opening balance
Add: Profit for the year 7,250.06 1,905.25 11,479.96

{+} Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve - 300.00

{-} Utiiised far Bonus lssue - {4,904,50) -
{-] Utifised for Dividend* (395.47) - -
{+/-} Other comprehensive income (8.04) 3.85 -
Closing balances at the end of the year 18,399.42 11,552.R7 14,548.67

B} Debenture Redemption Reserve

Dpening balance - - 300.00

deductions during the year - - {300.00}

Uesing balances at the end of the year . - .

C) Security Premium

Cpening balance 3,044.43 - -

Addition during the year** 1,217.09 3,044.43 -

Closing balanzes at the end of the year 4,261.53 3,048.43 -
Total Other Equity [A+B+C) 22,660.95 14,592.31 14,548.67

*Bividend on preference shares from the period 01.04.2021 to 31.03.2023
**Security Premium received on finaf colf on right issues of equity shares no 170,46,100 & Rs.7.14/-




Vishvaraj Environment Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements §§ VISHYARAS

{Amount in INR {akhs unless otherwise stated) ol R
CIN:L74958MH20DEPTCIBEO5D

1l Financial liabilities

I1l{a) Borrowings

Nan-current Current

As at As at Asar As at As at As at

Particulars 31st March ; 3ist March  31st March st April
31st March

2023 st March 2022 Ist Aprit 2021 2023 2022 2021
Term Loan
Wehicle & Equipment Loans (Secured) 44,42 105.61 19.29 51.19 56.58 2.69
From releated party (unsecured} - - - 8,126.08 0.00 3,203.89

4447 105.61 19.29 §,188.17 56.58 3,212.58

1-¥fehicle Loans- The Company has taken Vehicle loans from HDFC Bank of Rs 23.195 Lakhs for the purchase of Innova Crysta & Rs 14 845 | akhs for
the purchase of Mahindra Marazzo in June 2019 which are repayable 50 eguated monthly instailmants.

2-vehicle Loans- The Company has taken Vehicle loan from HDFC Bank of Rs 9.52 Lakhs for the purchase of Toyata Urban Croiser in Feb 2022 which
are repayable 66 equated monthly installments.

3-Equipment Loans- The Company has taken the loans from Axis Bank of Rs 151.5% Lakhs for parchase of Construction Equipments Tn Qctober 2021
which are repayable 37 equated monthly installments.

1X{b) Other financiaf liabilities
Non- Current

As at As at As at
Particulars 3ist March 31t March 1st Aprit

2023 2022 2022
Preferance Shares* 3,29555 3,295.55 3,295.55
Balance in Related Parties - 182.69 323.44
Secutity Deposit & withheld - Contractors 757.23 B66.71 E06.13
Mabilization Advances 15,556.81 1,741.26 1,305.91
Cther Liabilities 73.66 77137 1,716,312

19,683.25 6,657.38 7447.1a

*b% Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative Preference Shares 3,29,55,521 @Rs.10 each

1z Provisions

Non-current Cusrent
As at Ag at As at As at
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March 31st March  31st March Lst Aprli
31st March 2021
2023 arch 2022 1st April 2023 2022 2021
Provision for Salary & Reimbursements - - - 148.99 113.52 44.59
Provision for Gratuity 167.32 116.12 90.51 5.33 8.77 1.90
Provision for Professional Tax - - - 085 0.71 0.34
Provision for Provident Fund & £5iC - - - 2104 13.68 5.75
Provision for Expenses - - ~ 16,282.45 3,517.42 2,551.68
167.32 116.12 90.51 16,459.56 3,650.10 2,604.24
13 her lizhilities
Non-cument Current
As at As at As at As at
As at Asat
Particulars 315t March . 31sttarch  33st March Lst April
1073 31st March 2022 ist April 2021 2023 2022 2021
Statutory liabllities - - - 6,317.57 567.94 98.48
Dividend Payable* - . - 38547 - -
Other Payabies - - - BE2.98 21.97 -
- - - 2,576.02 539591 93.48

*Dividend payobie on "6% redeemable non convertible non cumulative preference shores”




Vishvarag Envirooment Private Limited

Notes te Financial tatements

tAmcunt in ENR lakhs unless otherwise statad}
CIN:U74399MH2008FTC186950

VISHVARAS

ERVIRONMENT Pt Lid

14 income tax
The majgr component of income tax enpense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2023:

Intome tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and lnss

Far the year For the year
Particulars ended 315t ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022

Current income tax

in respect of current year (1,234.21) {724.07}

Adjustrnent in respest of current income tax of previcus year [12.53) (463}

Deferred tax credit

In respect of current year {28.18) [6.38)
{1,274.92) {735.07)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit musdtiplied by the appficable tax rate{s) :

For the year For the year

Particidars ended 31st ended 31k
Accounting profit before incomas tax 8524 98 2,640.33
Tau expense at an Indian corporate tax rate 1,220.44 664,52
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 57.48 90.66
Effect of difference in tax rates used to calculate tax un ternporary differences {4211} (9.87)
Effect of short pravisian of tax accounted in next vear - [12.53)
Effect of current income tax of previous vear 1252 462
Others effect [8.58} {9.67)
Effect of difference in tax rate an {loss)/galn other romprehensive income {OC1) [2.02} 0.97
Tatal income tax payakle as per indian Carporate tax rate (A} 246,74 ?;L@L
incoime tax expense reported in the statement of proflt and boss for the current year 1,246.74 728.69
Deferred tax:

Deferred tax refates to the following:
Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at As at As at As at Asat
315t March 31st March st April 31st March
31st March 2023
2023 2022 2021 " 2022
Deferred tax Assets / Liabilities -
Praperty, pfant and equipment 142,11} (1125 3214 4211 11.23
Pravision for emplayee benefits 1393 4.84 5.19) [13.93}) 4.84}
[28.18) {6.38}) 26.95 28.18 6.38
Reflacted in the balance sheet b3 follows:
As at As at As at
Partirulars 315t March  21st March 2022 1st April 2021
2023
Deferred tax asseis § {Deferred tax Liabilities] (1.97} 26.21 3259
Deferred Tax Asset/{Liakilities) {net] Ia?} _E&a 32.59
Reconcillation of deferrad tax {liabilities}fassets [net):
As at As at As gk
Particulars st March 315t March 2022 1st Aprli 2021
2023
Opening balance 26.21 32.59 5.64
::5 {income}fexpense during the period recognised in statement of profit and (28.18) (6.3%) I6.95
Tau {incomel/expense during the period recagnised in OCH - . R
Closing batance of deferred tax {Habililies)/Assal [net) [T.97) 25.21 32.59

The Company affsets 1ax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax fiabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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15 {a} Trade payables

Non-current Current
As at As at As at Asat
Particulars 31st March As at As at 31st March  31st March 1st Apdi
i 1
2023 315t March 2022 1st April 202 2023 2022 2021
Trade payables
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 24 for details of dues to - - - 545.14 287.85 31838
micro and small enterprises)
. it
i ‘total outstanding dues of credy nr_s other than ) B . 5.229.29 7126.41 3,417.39
mitro enterprises and small enterprises
- - - 5,775.49 7,414.26 3,735.77
Nan-turrent Current
As at As at As at As at
As at Asat
Particulars 31st March i 31st March  31st March 1st April
h
2023 31st March 2022 ist April 2021 2023 2022 2021
Trade payables others - - - 4,443.94 2,476.02 3,735.77
Trade payzbles to related parties - - - 1,331.50 4,938 25 -
- - - 5,775.44 7,414.26 3,735.77
Trace Payabie Ageing as on 31.03.2023
h
Particulars tessthan | 43 vears 23Vears | MOrEWand
Year Years
i. total outstanding dues f micro anterprises and smadl
enterprises {refer noite 34 for details of dues to micro 546.14 - - - 546.14
and smialf enterprises)
" - -
i totai !Jutstan ing dues of creditors other than micro 5,188.84 970 20.48 10.28 5.229.29
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 573498 9.70 20.48 10.28 5,775.44
Trade Payable Ageing as on 21.03.2022
Particulars lessthanl | vears 2avears | MOEthaN3 |
Year Years
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 287.85 - - 287,85
enterprises [refer note 34 for details of dues to micro
fses)
ii. total putstanding dues of crediters other than micre £,997.07 12122 6.81 1.32 7.126.41
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 7,284.92 121.22 5.B1 1.32 7414.26
16 Tax asset/lizbility {net}
Current
As at As at As at
Particulars 3lst March  31st March 1st April
2023 2022 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Provision for Income Tax 1,274.82 735.07 -
Less: Advance tax and tax deducted at source (1,274.92) [436.53) -

238.55
=
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Disaggragated revende information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from cantracts with Lustemers:

VISHVARAS

ENVIRCAMENT i, Eif

particul for the year ended  For the year ended
aricuars 31stMarch 2623  3lstMarch 2022
Type of services
Income from contract - Construction 50,043.09 12,832.83
Incore from sale of goods 231.69 253.80
Total revenue 505280.78 ZSEDQZ.B
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred & Services rendered over the time 50,280.78 23,092.63
Total revenue 50,280.78 23,002.63
Contract balances
particulars As at Asat As at
115t March 2023 31st March 2022 1st April 2021
Trade recavables 35,737.53 1252049 6,455.89
Other income
. forthe year ended  For the year anded
Particulars 31stMarch 2023 31st March 2022
interest income
- Bank deposits 191.73 64,51
{ther non operating income 23.01 EX?
Dividend Income® 3,6060.00 -
Profit on sale of thvestment in shares*? €33.79 -
4,648.53 67.96
*Dividend income received on investment in shares of subsidiary M/s Nagpur Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd.
Y®Rrafit is relating sale of investment in shares of Corbello Trading Pyt Ltd.
Cost of Operations
. For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 3istMarch 2023  3istMarch 2022
Construction Contract Expenses 22,194.1% 9,099.61
Construction 5tores, Spares And Materials Consumed 15,006.26 5, 704,11
Trading Purchases 219.94 253.16
37,420.39 15,056.88
Employee benefits expense
. for the yearended  For the year ended
Particulars 315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,656.90 2,266.83
Contribution to provident and other funds 108.23 BA.11
Gratuity expenses 47.30 23.1¢
Staff welfare expenses 161.44 92.73
3,973.88 2,448.82
Finance costs
For the yearended  For the yearended
Particulars 31stMarch 2023 31stMarch 2022
Interest on Loans 162.85 23168
Interast expense-Others 48 44 4.34
695,65

fank charges & Other finance cost

906.93
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22 Depreciation and amortisation expense

23

23a

24
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Porticulars for the yearended 315t For the year ended
March 2023 31st March 2022
Depreciation and amortisation expense 128.69 33.38
12869 39.38
Other adminstrative expenses
. For the year ended 315t For the year ended
Particulars March 2023 31st March 2022
Legal and professional expenses 370,08 k280
Travelling and canveyance expenses 481,25 229,64
Motor Car Expenses 210.73 79.14
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 110.24 78.00
Gift & Donations 75.30 57.51
Insurance 2696 56,00
Office expenses 89,45 309.00
Payment 10 auditors [Refer note 23a) 36.55 4.50
Power and fuel 5299 4%,13
Interest & Penalty 37.23 150.70
Rent expenses 3132.83 122,32
Business Promotian Expenses 79.60 14117
Directors Remuneration 1,144.52 485.85%
Director Siting Fee 20,00 19.00
foreign Curvency Exchange toss 59.53 3739
Miscellencus Expenses 576.156 54.51
EXTTEE XY
Payment to auditars:
for the year ended 315t For the year ended
Particulars March 2023 33st March 2022
Audit Fees 4.50 245
Cast Audit Feas 0.55 1.05
Internal Audit Fees 30.00 -
Certification Fees 1.50 1.00
36.55 4.5¢
==

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted £P5 amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equityholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, The Company has not issued any dilutive potential equity shares that would convert into equity

share.

The following reflects the incame and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year ended 315t For the year ended
March 2023 315t March 2022
Profit attributsble to equity holders of the company 7,242.0% 1,50%.25
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing earning per equity share (Basic) 71.000,000 12,839,415
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing earning per equity share {Diluted) 21,000,000 12,839,416
Basic and diluted earning per equity share {In INR} 10.20 14.84
Face value per equity share [in INR) 10.00 10.00
Reconciliation of welghted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Particulars Weighted average
number of 5
Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share:
Ags at April 03, 2021 4,904,900
Changes in equity shares during the year 7,934,516
As at March 31, 2022 12,833,418
Changes in equity shares during the year 58,160,554
As at March 3, 2023 71,800,000
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25 Components of other comprehensive income
The disaggregation of changes o OC) by each type of reserve in equity is shown belaw:
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
darch 2023 March 2022
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined employee benefit [8.04) 3.85
{B.04} 3.85
6 Emplaoyee benefits

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Paymant of Gratuity Act, 1572. Under the Act, employees who have completed at least five years of service are
entitled ta specific benefit, The level of benelit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled
to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months an the basis of fast drawn safary.
The s@me is payabie on termination of service or retirement or death whichaver is parller. The gratuity plan of the Carnpany is unfunded.

The presert value of the obligation under such defined benetit plan is determined based on an actuatlal valuation as st the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each unit separately to buiid up the final ohligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rate used for determining the present value of the obiigation under defired benefit plans is based oh the market yields on Government bonds as at the
date of actuatial valuation. Actuarial gains and |osses (net of kak) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income [OC1).

These plans typically sxpose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Interest rate risk, Salary esclation risk, [ongevity risk and attrition risk etc,®

Interest Rate risk; The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fadl in interest rates. A fatl in interast rates wil result in an increase in the ultimate cost
of praviding the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liabillry.

Salary Escakation Risk: The present valve of the defined benefit plan is catculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used ta determine the prasent vaiye
of obligatian will have a bearing an the plan's liabity.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability 5 calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and 2fter their employiment. An increase in the iife expectancy of the plan participants will incraase the plan's liabitity.

Attrition risk: The present value of the defined henefit plan lizhility is calcuiated by reference to the attsition rate of plan garticipants. As such, an
decrease in the attrition rate of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

* Other actuarial risks having no materiaf impact are not disciosed.

The fullowing tables ise the p ts of net benefit expense recognised In the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the gratulty plan:

For the year For the year
Particudars ended 315t ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022

Change in benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the pericd 120.52 §2.41
Current service cost 3880 26.42
Interest cost 8.70 6.28
Benefits paid directly by emplover {3.58} [0.37)

Re-measurements due to:

Attuarial gain anising from change in demographic sssumptions
Actuarial lassf{gain) arlsing from change in financial assumptions . {4.99)
Actuariat lass/[gain) arising due to experience over the past year 204 1.i4
Present walue of obligation as at the end af the perid 172.65 120.83
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The reconcifiation of the present vaiue of obligations and the falr vaiue of plan assets to the assets and liabilities is as below:

Particulars As at As at hs at
315t March 2023 31st March 2022 Ist April 2023
Present value of defined benefit ahligations as at end of the year 172.65 120.89 92.41
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - . -
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 25 at the end of the yaar 1?2625 120.89 92.41
Current 533 4.7 1.20
Non-currant 167.32 116,12 90.51
172,65 120.89 92.41
The neat gratuity cost for the below tioned years is as Fol
For the year Forthe year
Particulars ended 315t ended 315t
March 2023 March 2022
Current service cost 38.60 26.42
interest cost 870 5.28
Met actuarial (Gain)/Loss 8.04 (2.85]
Less: Amount transferred to Vishvaraj Infrastructure Pvt Ltd [9.60)
Net gratuity cost 2534 19.25
A recagnised in St of Profit and Loss:
For tie year For the year
Partwulars ended 215t ended 315t

March 2023 March 2022

Cument service cost 38.60 2642
Interest cost on benefit obligation B8.70 6.28
Less: Amount transferred to Vishvaraj Infrastructure Put Ltd - [9.60}
A t recognised in Stat t of Profit and Loss 47 30 2310
e ——
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive income;
For the year For the year
Particutars ended 315t endad 315t
March 2023 March 2022
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising fram change in financial assumptions - {4.99}
Actuarial boss/{gain| arising due to experience over the past year 8.04 114
Amaunt of lossf{gain) recognised in Other Comprehensive intome B804 [3.85}
The grincipal ptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company's plans are sh bel
t te

Particulars 31‘20':;“ 31st March 2022 1st April 2021
Discount rate (%) 7.200% 7.20% 5.80%
Future salary increases [%] 6.00% 6.00% 5.00%
Emgployee turnover (%) 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement Age {¥Years) S8 58 58
Maortality rate during employeement 1ALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14  tALM 2013-14

{Ul.y {uit } {LIEY
Mortality rate After emnployeement NA NA NA
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assampticn as at March 31, 2023 is a3 shown below:

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary Increase
1% decrease 1% Engrease 1% decrease 1% increase
Impact on defined benefit abligation 16.24 (16.45) (26.78) 16.27
Empioyee furnover
1% decrease 1% increase
¢.36 {0.01)

A gquantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown helow:

Assumptions Bl t rate Future salary increase
15 decrease 1% Increase 1% decrease 1% Increase
Impact an defined beneafit abligation 12.32 {10.34} (10.53) 12.38
Emplayee turnover
135 decrease 1% increase
0.45 0.30}

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the lmpact on defined benefit obligatian as a result of
reasonahle changes in key assumptians occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due ta mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence Impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as ta rate of infiation, rate of
increase of pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirerent & fife expectancy are nat applicable being a lump sum benefit on
retirement.

27 G it) ts and Conti s

a Cantingent Liahilities
tiabilites which are material and whose future outcome cannat be reasonably ascertained are treated as contingert and are provided for and disclosed
by way of notes to accounts,
I-Cormpany has been sanctioned bank guarantee limits of Rs 21,900 Lakhs of which it has Utilized Rs 21,670.49 Lakhs. Further, tha company also had
BGs issued of Rs.3,380.11 {akhs backed by 100% marain (FOR)
Ii-The Company haz given indemnity to Dhivehi insurance Company Pyt Ltd. , Male, Republic of Maldives of LSD 27,.73,384.49 (INR eqv. R5.2279.17
Lakhs) for issuing a surety bond on behalf of the campany, The surety bond was issued in favour of Ministry of Mationa! Planning, Housing and
infrastructure Male, Republic of Maidives, for securing the mobilisation advanece received of LISD 26,16,400.46 (INR egv. Rs.2150.15 Lakhs);
fowtstanding balance as on 31.03.202% is USD 2,38 008 85, INR eqv.Rs. 19560 Lekhs) for its Maldives project. [Mote: JNRAUSD rate=52.18 as on
21.03.2023 has heen applled for colvwiating equivalent indion rupees vafue]
It+-The Company has given indemnity to Dhivehi Insurance Company Pvt itd. , Male, Republic of Maldives of USD=18,48,922.99 (iNR eqv, Rs.1519.44
Lakhs]) far issuing performance security in favour of Ministry of National Planning, Housing and tnfrastructure fMale, Republic of Maldives; on behalf of
the company for its Maldives project. [Note; INR/USE rate=82.18 os on 32.02.2023 has been opplied for cofewloting equivalent indian rupees valire]

b Limited period conditiona! Corporate Guarantes:
The Company is into project development, wherein it bids for PPPAHAM contracts, and sets up 3PV for executing the same, The praject $PYs have
secured cash flow based project financing; with VEPL responsible for the construction of the projects. SPY lenders have reccurse only to the project
cash Hows at SPY during operational period for debt repayment, and VEPL is respansible for the construction of the project as well as the promoter
comtribution. VEPL contribution towards project cost is betwaen 20-30% of the construction contract; and accordingly , VEPL is expected to undertake
the construction tisk. in view of the same, VEPL has provided conditional guarantee to the PV project lenders tllf project stahilisation period linked to
Cormmercial Operations Date of the projects. VEPL's exposure is significantly mitigated on acenunt of the contractual clauses, wheren the project SPY
Authority takes over most of the risk towards the lender’s dues.

" Project el iihs S Chandrapur Waste Water - Maheshtala Waste Water
Paak Dabt permissitile 5044 Lakhs 10296 Lakhs
Dabt afs as on 31.3.23 5044 Lakhs il
S::c:rate Guarantee to the project lender 2024 2026
Authority at project Mahagenco NMCG { National Mission for Clean

Ganga)
Any Termination Payment till the
Redevant clause in the Concession Agreementf  Any Termination Payment by Authority shall  |praject CO0 by Authority shall be
with the Authority include 100% of Lender's Dues Include atleast 85% of Lender's
Dues

* linked to the Commercial Operations Date of the project.
# VEPL has agreed to provide Corporate guarantee on similar terms as the Maheshtala Project, to the project fender for tha Agra SPY, but the guarantee
document has not been executed as of 31.3.2023

¢t Pledge of shares:
1-The Company has pledged 90% shareholding {no of shares 9,00,000) of M/s Nagpur Waste Water Management Pvt Lid. (NWWMPL) for NWWMPL's
projects |pan of 5. 48707 Lakhs In favour of NWWHIMPL's project lender {Current 05 as an 31.03.23 Rs.39,282 Lakhs)

2-The Company has pledged 74% shareholding (no of shares 92,87,0001 of MJs Chandrapur Waste W
CWWMPL's projects loan of Rs.5044 Lakhs in favour of CWWMPL's project lender (Current Ofs as on
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28 Segment information

An operating segment is a cormponent of the Company that engages in business activitles from which it may eam revenues and incur expanses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other componeats, and for which distrete financial information is available.
All operating segments’ operating resuits are reviewed regularly by the Director - General Management to make decisions about resources to be sllocated
to the segments and assess their performance,

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Geographic Revenus
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 315t Mareh, 315t March,
2023 2022
Revenue from operations from cusiomers within India 4217437 21,853.37
Reveljue fram operations from custamers outside India inot includes the export sale to branch 2,106.41 1529.26
Maldives as mentioned below)
Total Revenue 50,280.78 13,092.63
'_E_)'t_eutt Sale to Branch at Mald
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Revenue from operations fr. stomers sutside India [Export made by VEPL {}) to VEPL
e perations from cu utside India [Exp ¥ VERL {1 1,584,94 183,53
Maldives branch|
Less: Ellminations of Revenue {1,584.94) {183.53)
Total Revenue . R
Segment assets
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 315t March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Assets within India B80,467.28 38,387.12
Assets putside India 7,189.82 1,711.18
Total Asset 87,657.10 AH1,098.30
Sepment Liabiities
Year ended Year ended
Farticulars J1st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Liabilities within India 54,778.93 12,943.52
Liabilities outside india 3,117.21 2,649 .44
Total Ushtlities 57.896.15 15,552.9¢|

29 Related party discl
A List of Refated Partles
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures', names of the related parties, nature of related party relationship,
transactions and outstanding balances where contro] exists and with whom transactions have taken place duting the pericd are:

Nature of refationship Name of the parties

a) Holding Company 1-Premier Financlal Services Pyt Ltd

1-Magpur Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd
2-Vep! Mspi Smart Water Pvt Ltd

3-Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pvc Ltd
4-Maheshiala Waste Water Manapament Pvt Ltd
S-Vedic Waste Water Management Put Ltd
E-fgra Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd
7-Vishwaraj Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd

b] Subsidiary Company

1-M/fs Vishvaraj vedic Jv

£} Joint Venture
2-M/s Jackson Vishwaraj iv

d] Cemmon Girectar 1-Vistwarai Infrastructure Pyt ttd
2-Vhepl-Adec Pingiai Infrastructure Pyt Ltd

&) Key management personnel ang their relatives 1-Mr.arun Lakhanj
2-mArSidhaartha Lakhanee
3-Mr.Sarang Lakhanee
4-Mr.Suresh Agiwal
S-Mr.Satyajeet Raut
&-Mrs.Vandana Lakhani
T-Mr.Amit Sankusars

A Indepedant Directors PSRN 3 MirSutanu Behuria
- Mr.Anurag Shrivatsava
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B Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties are as undar:

Far the year For the year
Particuiars ended 31st ented 31st
March 2023 March 2022

I~ Revenue from Opevations:

Nagpur Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd 4,454.22 4,305,932
vepl Mspl Smart Water Pvt Ltd 445,74 497.82
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pt Ltd 250541 9,499.62
htaheshtala Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd 4,4826.23 -
vedic Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd 367.32 -
Agra Waste Water Management Pvt Lid 4,497.06 -
/s dacksan Vishwvara) v 2,430.32 -
II- Material Purchases/Contract Services:

Vishvaraj Infrastructure Pt Ltd {Previousely Known as 1,723.37 4,400.565
Vishwarai Infrastructure Ltd}

- 5521

Vedic Waste Water Management Pt Ltd

lil- Directars Remunerations:

Mr. Arun Lakhani 30040 25.00

Mr.Sidhaartha Lakhanee 300.00 150.0¢

Mr.Szrang Lakhanee 300.00 150.00

Mr.Suresh Aglwal 128,63 84.54

Mr.Satvajest Raut 114.89 75.94
- Directors Siting Fees:

Mr Sutanu Behuria 10.00 9.50

Mr Anvrag Shrivatsava 10.00 9.50

V- Rent Paid:

Mrs.Vandana Lakhani 12.00 1B.60
V- Salary Pald:

Mrs.Vandana Laithani - a0.00

Mr_Amit Sankusare 28.19 24.67
VH- Intenast Paid:

152.20 21493

Premier Financials dervices Pvit Ltd

Note : Al the transactions entered with refoted parties fubave) are af armn's fength price & in normal cource of business.
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Name of Party Fype As at As at A at
e 3istMarch 2023 JistMarch2022  1st April 2021
Drficn) Dr/{Cr) Dr/{Cr)
Nagpur Waste Water Management Put Ltd investment-Casi Equity 16,458.00 16,458.00 16,458.00
& Ad -
Nagpur Waste Water Management Put Ltd ::Z:c:ﬂm taan & Advance-Sponsor 1211 . 1,872.28
Nagpur Waste Water Management Put Ltd Trade Receivable-EFC Contract - - 400.40
Magpur Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Trade Receivable-CHEM Contract 2611 31152 296.98
Nagpur Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd Investment in Eguity instruments 20.00 $0.00 90.00
Vishvaraj Infrastructure Ltd Trade Payable-EPC Contract {1.331.50) {4,877.51} (200.65)
¥
vepl Mspl Smart Water Pyt Ltd Short Yerm Loan & Advance-Sponsor . {182.69) 46.51
Support
Vepl Mspl Smart Water Pvt Lid Trade Receivable-EPC Contract 181.36 - 125729
Vep! Mspi Smart Water Pvt Ltd Investrrent in Equity instraments a.7s Q.74 0.74
Corbello Trading Pyt Ltd Investment in Equity instruments - 051 0.51
Shert Ti -
Chandrapur Waste Water Managament Pyt Ltd Su:po:rm Loan & Advance-Sponsor 43.63 95.22 2.56
Chandrapur Waste Water Managerment Pyt Ltd Mobilisation Advance - B {1,305.91}
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd Trade Reteivable-EPC Contract 143214 6,527.19 -
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Trade Receivatle-EPC-Retention 238 13749 -
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Investment-Quast Equity 507.00 131.80 -
Chandrapur Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd Investment in Equity instrurments 1,129.5Q 1,129.50 4.5
Maheshtata Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd 222:0:*"“ toan & Advance-Sponsor 4493 234
Mafeshtala Waste Water Management Pyt Lid Invesement-Cuasi Equity 761.00 - -
Mazheshtafa Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd Investrnent in Equity instruments 100.00 508 5.00
faheshtala Waste Waner Management Pyt Ltd Trade Receivable-EPL Contract 2,551.87 - -
Mazheshtala Waste Water Management Pyt Led Trade Receivabie-EPC-Retention 1i0.66 - -
Maheshitala Waste Water Managerment Pt Ltd Mobilisation Advance {3,555.38) - -
Agra Waste Water Management Pyt Lid investment-Quasi Equity 4,380.00 - -
Agra Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Short Term Loan & Advance-Sponsor 10.00} - -
Support
Apra Waste Water Management Put Ltd Mobilisation Advance 1£,233.09) . -
Apra Waste Water Management Pyt Lt Investment in Equity instruments 74.00 - -
Apra Waste Water Management Pvt ttd Trade Racaivable-EPC Contract 5,216.60 -
Vedic Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd Investment in Equity instruments 48.91 43.91 -
Vedic Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Mobilisation Advance {125.14) - -
Vedic Waste Water Management Pt Ld Trade Payable - (60.73} -
Vedic Waste Water Management But Lkd Trade Receivabia-EPC Coniract 416 46 - -
Ad =
M3 Vishvaraj- Vedic )y Short Term Loan & Advance-Sponsor 0.30 i .
Support
/S rackson-Vishivaraj JV Trade Receivabie-EPC Contract 275487 - -
Fremier Financial Services Pyt Ltd Shart Terrn Bormowing {8,126.98} - {3,204.89
Premier Financial Services Put Led short Term Laans & Advances {on . . 143
behalf Exp)
Vishvaraj Waste Water Management Pyt Ltd ::::;:”” Loan & Advance-Sponsor . 19.26 19.25
Vishvara] Waste Water Management vt Ltd Investment in Preference instruments 0000 700.00 F0.00
Vishvara] Waste Water Management Pvt Ltd Investment in Equity instruments 669.30 - -
Vhepl-Adoc Pinglai infrastructure Pyt Lid Other financial liabilities - - {323.448)
Vandana Lakhani Rant Payable (1.62) {1.62} {4.97)
Sarang Lakhanee Sponsership Advance - 233.00 -
Sarang Lakhanee Other financiaf liabilities (73.66} - -
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Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by dass of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with
carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying vaiue Fair value

Particulars 31st March 31st March 1st Aprii 31st March 31st March ;

2023 2022 2021 2023 792y stherizon
Financiat assets
{at amortised cost]
Laans & Advances Non Current 23,506.00 16,589.80 16,458.00 22,506.00 16,589.80 16,458 .00
Trade receivabies 35,737.53 12,520.45 £,455.89 35,737.53 12,520.49 65455.89
Other bank balances 10,035 68 2,233.549 1,433.40 10,035 68 2,2331.59 1,433.40
Cash and cash equivalents 1.766.01 58202 123409 1,766.01 582.02 12709
Other financial asset 1,047.21 600.45 243.01 1,047.21 50045 243.01
Loans & Advances Current 58.78 15941 1,982.67 58.78 159.41 1,982.47

71,151.21 32!685.76 2?!300.06 71,151,21 325585.?6 ZPQBB.OG
Financial liabliities
{atamortised cost]
Term Loan 8,232.59 162.19 323188 8,232.59 162.19 3,231.88
Trade payables 5,775.44 7,414.26 3,735.77 5,775.44 7.414.26 3,735.,77
Other financial liabilities 19,683.25 5,657.38 7,447.14 15,683.25 5,557.38 7,447 14

33&91.2? 14,233.83 14,914.78 33‘591.27 14,233.83 14414.78

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financiat assets and liabitities significantly approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Fair Value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair valuze that are either observable or unobservable

and consists of the Jollowing levels:

tevel 1: inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes quoted financial instruments,
government securities, berrowings and mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: inputs are other than quoted prices Included within tevel 1 that are observabile for the asset or fability, either directly (l.e. as prices} or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). This includes derivative financial instruments.

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observabie market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a vafuation
model based on assumptions that are neither supperted by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are
they based on available market data. This inchides unquoted equity shares.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2623
Falr vafue measurement using

Date of Total Quoted prices  Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable
markets, nputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3]
Financial Assets- amortised cost
Loans & Advances Non Current 22,506.00 - -
Trade receivables 35,737.53 - - -
Other bank balances 10,035.68 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,766.01 - - -
Other financial asset 1,047.21 - - -
Loans & Advances Current 58.78 - - -
Firancial liabilities - amortised cost
Terrn Loan 8,232.59 - - -
Trade payables 5,775.44 - - -
Other financial liabilities 19,683.25 - - -
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurament hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022
Falr value measurement using

Date of Total Quoted prices  Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unohservable
markets inouts
{Level 1) {ievel 2} {Level 3)
Financial Assets- amortised cost
toans & Advances Non Current 16,589.80 - - -
Trade receivables 12,520.49 - - -
Other bank balances 2,233.59 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 582.02 - -
Other financial asset £00.45 - -
Loans & Advances Current 153.41 - -
Financial fiabilities - amortised cost
Term Loan 162.1% - -
Trade payabies 7.414.26 - -
Cther financial liabilities 6,657.38 - - -

Guantitative disciosures fair value measurement hlerarchy for assets as 2t 01 Aprit 2021
Fair value measurement using

Date of Total Quoted prices  Significant Significant
valuation in active observable uncobservable
markets inputs inguts
{Level 1) {Level 2) {tevel 3)
Financizl Assets- amortised cost
Loans & Advances Nan Cuerent 1€,458,00 -
Trade receivables 6,455.89 - - -
Other bank balances 1,433.40 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 72709 - -
Other financial asset 243.01 - -
Lzans & Advances Current 198267 . -
Financial liabllities - amortised cost
Term Loan 3,231.88 - - -
Trade payables 3,733.77 - - -
Other financial liabilities 7,447.14 - - -

Financial risk management objectives and policles

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payzhles and other financial Nabiltties. The main purpase of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Campany’s operations. The Campany™s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, unbiiled receivables and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposad to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company senier management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company's senior management reviews the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The
Company financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managad in accordance with the Company's pelicies and risk objectives.

A. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
visk comprises of three types of risk: currengy risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The currency risk, interest rate risk and equity grice risk
is nat applicable for the Company.

Credlt risk management

Credit risk is the risk that covnterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, lsading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables} and from its other activities including derivative
contracts (if any). The Company generally deals with parties which has good credit rating/ werthiness or based on Company internal assessment
as listed batow.

Particulars 31st March 31st March 1st April
2023 2022 2021
Trade receivables 35,737.53 12,520.49 6,455.89 |
Other Financial Assets 1,047.21 600.45 243.01
Total 6,698.91
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322 Liguidity rick management
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financlal assets and liabilltles. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and
debt maturing within 12 months can be rolied over with existing lenders, wherever applicable.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial iabilities hased on tontractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars Notes Carrying Less than 1 Year  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
amount Years
Year ended March 31, 2023
Trade payables 15 {a) 577544 £, 732.98 9.70 20.48 10.28
Borrowings 1fa} B,232.59 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 11[b) 1%, 683.25 - - - -
33,691.27 5,734.98 9.70 20.48 i0.28
Particulars Carrying  lessthan } Year 1.2 Years 2.3 Years Muore than 3
amount Years
Year ended March 31, 2022
Trade payables 15ia) 7414,26 7,284.92 123.22 &.81 1.32
Borrowings 11{a) i62.19 - - - -
Other financial liabilities 11{b} 6,657.38 - - - -
14,233.83 7.284.93 121,22 6.81 1,32
Particulars Larrying Less than 1 Year  1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
amgunt Years
Year ended April I, 2021
Trade payables 15 {a} 3,735.77 3,74.40 17.B5 273 10.73
Borrowings 114a) 3,231.58 - - - -
Cther financial habilities 11{b} 7.447.14 - - - -

14,414.78 3,704.40 17.85 2.79 13,73
= —— =




Vishwaraj Enwire t Private Limi
Notes to Financial Statements
{Amount In INR lakhs unless ctherwise stated)
CIN:U 74999 MH200RFTC 186950

A

33 Capital management

15

The Board's policy maintains a strong capital base so as ta maintain Investor, creditor and market canfidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as well 2s the level of dividend to sharebolders, if any.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, general reserves attributahle to the equity helders, The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximlse the shareholder vaiue.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain Investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustaln future
development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as well 35 the level of dividend to shargholders, if any.

The Company manitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is borrawing (Non Current) divided by total capital {Equity and Reserve & Surpius),

Particulars 31st March 2023  31st March 2022 1st Aprii 2021

Borrowings {Non Current) 44.42 105.61 19.29
Tetal Capital (Equity & Other £quity] 29,760.95 21.200.79 15.039.16
Gearing ratio {3} 0.15% 0.50% 0.13%

Betails of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Minlstry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises shouid mention in their correspondence with its customers, the Entreprensurs Memorandum Number as allecated after filing of the
Memorandum in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 ('the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of
the amounts payable to such enterprises #s at March 31, 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and avaitable
with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of Interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisians of the
Act is not expected to be material. The Company has nat received any claim for interest fram any supplier a5 at the balance sheet date.

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022 1st Apri] 2021
(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers 546.14 257 .85 318.38
{a-1} Principal amount paid to beyond due date 179.08 278.54

{b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micra, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, alang with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear;

(c} the amount of interest due and payahle for the period of delay in making payment - - _
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} but without

adding the interest spacified under the Micre, Small and Medium Eaterprises

Development Act, 2006;

{d) the ameunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting 0.74 2.68 -
year; and

{e] the amount of Further interest remzining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, untit such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a dedurtible expenditure under section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

C5R expenditure as per Saction 135 of the Companies Act 2013

Particulars A1st March 2023 31st March 2022 1st Apri] 2021
f] Gross amaunt reqguired to be spent by the Company during the vear 44.83 32235 26.12
if} Total amount paid during the Financial Year 110.24 78.00 140.46
i} Previous years excess spent balance 150.08 114.34 -
iv} Total CSR spert halance (ii+ili} 270.32 192.34 140.46
v} Spent aut of previous years excess spent balance 4483 32.25 -
vi) Spent out of current year payment - - 26.12
vii) Total Spent {wv+vi) 44.33 32.25 26.12
viii} Excess amount spent for the financial vear {iv-uii) 225.49 160,08 114.34

ix} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial vears,if any
x} Amount available for set off in succeeding Financlal years fulii+ix)
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First-time adoption of Ind AS

The financial statements for the year ending March 31, 2023 would be the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The adoption was carried out in accordance with ind AS 101 using balance sheet as at April 01, 2021 as the transition date. The transition was carried
oul fram Indian GAAP, which was considered as the previous GAAP. All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively, wherever,
required. The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the assets and Habilities in the financial stataments under both Ind AS and previous
GAAP as of the transition date are recognized directly in equity {Retained Earnings) at the date of transition to ind AS.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for pariods ending on or after April 1, 2021, together
with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022, as described in the summary of sigrificant accounting poficies. n
preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2021, the Company's date of transition to Ing
AS5. This note explains the principal adjustrnents made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements, inciuding the balance sheet
as at April 01, 2021 and the financial statemants as at and for the year ended March 33, 2022.

Mandatory exceptions:
a) Estimares

The estimates at April 01, 2021 and at March 31, 2022 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Previous GAAP {after
adjustments to reflect any differences in acceunting policies)

The estimates vsed by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 81, 2021, the date of transition to
Ind A5 and as of March 31, 2022

Ind AS 101 treats the information received after the date of transition to Ind ASs as non-adjusting events. The entity shall not reflect that new
information in its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet (uniess the estimates need adjustrment for any differences in accounting policies or thers is objective
evidence that the extimates were in errarl.

b} De-recognition of financial assets:

The Cornpany has applied the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 108 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition te
Ind AS.

<) Classification and measurement of financlal assets;

Financial assets like security deposits paid, has been classified and measured at amortised cost on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at
the date of transition to Ind AS. Since, it is impracticabie for the Company to apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ind AS 104, the fair
value of the financial asset or the financial liability 3t the date of transition to Ind AS hy applying amortised cost methad, has been considered as the
new gross carrying amaunt of that financial asset or the financiaf Fability at the date of transition to tnd AS.

d) Impairment of financial ts: (Trade receivables and other financlal assets)

At the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has determined that there is np increase in credit risk since the initial recognition of a financial
instrument.

Examgtions applied:
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters centain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under ind AS. The Company has
applied the foliowing exemptions:

Deemed cost
As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:

a. measure an itern of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that Fair vafue as its deemed tost at that date;
b. use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of the
revaluation, provided the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to -

* fair value
* or cost or depreciated cast under lnd AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index

€. use carrying values of property, plant and equipment as on the date of transition to Ind AS {which are measured in accordance with previpus GAAF) if
there has been o change in its functional currency on the date of transitian.

On the date of transition, the Company has availed the optional exemption available and has measured its Property, plant and equipment, Capital wark-
in-progress and Intangible assets in accordance with ind AS 16 and Ind AS 38.
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37  Reconciliation of equity as reported in previous GAAP to Ind AS:

Particulars Notes As at As at As 2t
31st March 2023 31st March 2022 1st April 2021

Equity &5 reported under previous IGAAF 29, 760.95 21,209.79 15,039.16
a). ind AS adjustments that feads 10 intrease in equity - - -
b}, Ind AS adjustments that leads to decrease in equity

i. Discounting of security deposits - - -
c}. Deferred tax impact on above adjustements - - -
fquity as reported under Ind AS 195?60.95 21,209.79 15,039,156

A. Employee benefit expense

Both under Previeus GAAP and Ind &S, the Company recognised costs related to its post-cmpleyment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under
Frevious GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged ta profit or loss. Under tnd AS, remeasurements comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest an the net defined benefit lighility and the return on plan
assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net deflned benefit fiability are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI.

8. Deferred tax

Previaus GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the profit and loss account approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach, which focuses an
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Balance Sheet and its tax base. The application of ind A5 12 approach
has resufted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences relating to various transition adjustments which are recognised in correfation
to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings as a separate companent in equity.

C. Other comprehensive income

Under previous GAAP, the Company has not presented other camprehensive income [OC!) separately. Hence, it has reconciled previous GAAP profit or
lass ta profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, previous GAAP profit or foss is reconciled to total comprehensive incame as per Ind AS.

D. Statement of cash flows
The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash Flows.

:
i
3
;
H
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Other Statutory Informaticn
i} During the year, the company has not entered into any transaction with companies stuck off under section 248 of the companies act, 2013 or section

560 of companies act, 1956,
if} Mo proceeding has been initiated ar pending against the company for holding any benami property unde the benami transactions (prahibition)

act, 1988 [us of 1988} an rules made thereunder.
i} The company has not been declared a wiiful defautter by any bank financial institution ar other lender.

] There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with roc beyond the statutory period.

v} There are no transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed 35 income during the year in the
tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961,

vi) The company has nat traded or invested in erypto currency or vinual currency durlng the financial year,

i) The Company has comptied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

{wiil) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on the eurrent or previous financial year

i} Utilization of borrewed funds and share premium:

a. No fund {which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have heen advanced or loared or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the campany to or in any ather person gr entity, including fereign entity (“intermadiaries”}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing ar otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the company {“ultimate beneficiaries”} or provided any guarantee, security ar the link
on bebalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

b. No funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“funding parties”},with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, diractly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties {“ultimate beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the witimate baneficiaries.

¢} The Company has not made any Loans and Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, Xey Managerial Personnel and refated parties
either {pintly or severally that are repayable on demand or without spacifying any term of period of repayment.

d) The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year.

Event occurred after the Balance Sheet date

The Company evaluates events and transactions that oceur subsaguent to the Balance sheet date but prior to the approval of the financial statements
to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in financial statements. there were no szhseguent
events to be recognised or reparted that are not already disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements.

investor Education and Protection fund
There are no amounts that are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Pratection Fuad in accordance with the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013,
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43.r The Company has prepared a reconciliation at the amounts of the net profit as reported under the previous GAAP to those campared as per Ind AS and the same
is given in Note 41.3 below. The Company has 3150 prepared a reconciliation of the amounts of total equity as reported inder the praviou GAAF 1o those
compared as per ind AS and the same is given in Note no. 41.4 below.

41,2 315¢ March 2022 Aprlk 1, 2023,
Farticulars Motes !ndian GA::I'-‘ .J,GMP ind AS Irnr.han EAJ:? o GAAP . ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and aguipment 42311 [D.00) 432,31 13296 0.0 11296
tntanglbie assets 9345 . 9365 371 . 371

Financial assats
L Invesement 1.999.56 - 1,9949.66 2246.09 - 82509

it. Trade récafvables 997.43 997.43 - 45,74 545.74

iit. Other financfal assets §00A45 600.45 243,01 24301

fv. Lsans & Advances 17.323.12 1733321 1658980 16,833 85 {375.89F  16458.00

Deferred tax assets 26.21 - 26.21 3258 - 32,59

Non-current tax asset {ner) . - - .00 [0.00} -

Other non-current asseis 1,058.39 153.14 2,211.33 1,358.08 161.45 1,519.54

Cuerent assets

Inventories 1,556.46 - 1356.46 148257 - 1.482.57

finandal assets

i Trade receivables 12,521.49 {998.43) 1152307 6454 .89 (544,24} 5,910.15

I, Cash and tash equivalents 582.02 . 532.02 #27.0% .08 71708

. Bank balsnces ather than {iil above 2.233.59 - 2,23359 1,433.40 {6.00) 1,433.40

iv. toans & Advances - 159.41 159.41 1,489.67 {507,000 1.982.67

Other current assets 1,181.59 {179.68) 110151 488.22 47841 96663

Total assets 41,098.30 {000} 40,098.30 33,247.17 000 3224717

Equity and fizbilities

Equiry

Share capital 9,908.03 13,295.55} 6.612 48 3,786.04 [3,295.55) 450.49

Other eqluity 14,5073} 0.0 14,557.31 14,548.67 000 1454857

Uabillties

Non-current liabilitias

Financiat Babilities

b Borrowlngs 10562 - 105,61 19.29 {0.00} 12.29

. Other financial #abifities 3,361.83 3,295.55 665738 2,355.48 9166 744714

Provistons 17612 - 11612 9051 . 9051

Current fiabilitias

Financial liahilities

i. Borrowings 56.58 000 56,58 B.69 2,203.89 321158

ii. Trade payables -
*-Due to micro, small and medium emterprises 287.85 - 257.85 31828 fa.00) 318.38
-Due tg othars 712541 1oo 712841 141739 040 3417.39

Proyisions 3,970.62 (32052} 3,650.10 2,604.24 (0,00} 2.604.34

Current vax liabilities {net) - 198.55 IGRES - - .

Dther surrent iiabilities 567.54 2197 SBg.91 9843 [0.00) 95.48

Total equity and liabilitles 40,098.30 0.00__ A0.098.30 32,247.17 000  32,247.17




41.3 Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive licome b Iy reported (referred to as “Previous GAAPR") and IND AS for the year ended March 31, 202%;
Indian GAAP Ind AS
Particulars Ind- AS
articu |regrouped]  Adjustments

Incoms

Revenue from operations 23,092.63 - 23,092.63

Other income 57.95 - BT96

Total income 23.160.59 - 23,160.5%

Cost of Operations 15,056.88 - 1505688

Employee benefits expense 2,444.57 2 ES 244882

Finance cost 403,52 - 403,52

Depreclation and amortisation ¢xspense 35.28 - 2938

Other administrative expenses 157167 - 2,571.67

Total expenses 20,516.42 385 2052027

Profit belore tax 2,644.18 -3.85 2.640.3%

Tax expense;

Cureant Tan [728.07] - [724.07)

Adjustmant of tax relating to earlier periads {4.62) - {4.62)

Deferred tax cradit {6.38] {6.38)

Tolal tax expenses {735.07) - (735.07}

Profit For the year 1,909.30 {3.85}) 1805.25

Other comprehensive income

Rems that will not be reclassified to profit or nss

Remeasurements of defined employee benefit - 285 3.33

Total other comprehensive income - 31.85 3.8

Total comprehensive income for the year net of kax 1,909.10 .00 1,909.10

414 Regoncifiation of Equity

Farticulars st March [ st April
2022 2021

Other Equity as per Previous GAAP 1459346 | 1424867

Adgstments through Profit and Loss:

Remeasurement of the defined banefit plan - -

Adijustments through OCI:

hemeasurement of the defined benefit plans 385 -

Net Other Equity as per IND AS 14,587.31 | 14,548.67

42 Other information
] Income Tan Assessment:

The Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax — 3{33{1) {“the Asgessing Officer”} while doing scrutiny assessment for AY 2020-21, denied certain deductions armounting
ta Rs. 50 lacs vide order passed ufs. 143(3) of the Act dated September 29, 3022 which has resuited Into lower incame Tax Refund to the tune of Rs. 13.46 lacs,
Aggrieved by the order the Learned AQ, the company has fited an appeal befare the first appetiate authority |ie. Commissionar of income Tax (appeaiz}] om October
15, 2022 which ls pending for disposal.

{
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Notes to Financial Statements
[Amaunt in INR lakhs unless ctherwise stated) % V fSH VA RA‘!
CIN:U74999MHZ008PTCIRE550 g ERVRONMERT Prt. £f]
43 Disclosure of various ratios
MNumerator Amount Ratlos
S.No Particulars Asat 315t As at 315t As at 31st As at 3ist
Dencminater
March 2023 March 2022 March 2023 March 2022
Current Assets 56,178.62 17,156.46
1 |Current ratio [Number of times} bk — 1.48 143
Current Liabilities 37,989,1% 12,009.41
-Equi i bt [long term 44,43 105.61
2 Dobt-Equity ratio {Number of  |Totat Debt {long ) 0.001 0.005
|times} Total Eqguity 29,760.95% 21,209.79
Debt service oo ratfo Net Profit after taxes+ Non-cash aperating 7,533.55 2.166.31
3 {Number of times} o A 34.33 870
s interest on Loans and Principal Repayment 21943 248 98
Met Profit after Tax 7,242.0% 1,905.25
4 |Aetum on equity ratie (in % = 2B.42% 10.51%
' quity ratio (in %) Average Shareholders Equity 25,485.37 18,124.47
5 Trads receivables turhover |Re\.renue fram operations 5{,280.78 43,052.63 2.08 243
ratia {in times) fAverage trade racelvables 24,129.01 9,488.19 ' '
6 Trade payables turnover ratic  {Dperating Expenses 37,42039 1505688 5.57 2.70
{Number of times] Average trade payables 6,504 85 5,575.02 )
Net capital turnover ratic Revenue from operations 50,280.78 23,082.63
7 <P {Aversge Working capital [Toral current assats |ess 11,663,774 399024 4.1 5.727
[Number of times} e e
Totai current liabilities}
MNet Profit after T 7,242 02 1,406.25
8 |Nevprofit ratio { %) ro L 14.40% 8.25%
Revenue from opesations S0,280.78 2309263
Profit before interest and tares 8,087.83 2,862.01
# |Return on capltal employed (%) [Average Capital employed {Total Assets less Cusrent 38,873.40 25,342 .80 22.35% 11.28%
Liabifitias}
Incomne generated from Jnvested fungds - -
10 Return on investment {In %! [ayerage invested funds in treasury investments - - NA NA

Note for variations more thas 28%

Tha ratios mentioned in 5r. no 3, 4, 8 and 9 has increased due to higher profit on aceount of dividend income and profit on sale of investment shawn urder

the head Other income.
2 Trade Payable turnover ratio [Sr. no 8) has increased due to increased in operating expenses.

3 Net capital wrnover ratio {5r. na 7) has intreased due to increased in revenue from operations.




44 Additionat Regulatary information Reguired by Schedute Wi of Companies Act, 2013

{a} Distlosures of transactions with struck off Companies
The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Compenies Act, 2013 or Section 580 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

(b} No transactions to report against the foltowing disch & reguir as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule li;
i Crypto Cutrency or Virtual Custency.
ii Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
ili Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Campanies.
iv Relating to bormowed funds:
-“Wilful defauiter
-Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium
-Horrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assers
-Discreganey in wtilisation of barrowings
-Current maturity of fong term borrowings
v Undisclosed income
vi Loans and advances to specified persons

{c] Dsclosures of compliance with ber of layers of companies

The Campany has complied with the requirements of the number of layars prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with {omparies {Restriction an number af Layers) Rules, 2017,

a5 Due ta first time adoption If IND A5 figures for the previous yaar have been regrouped / reclassified according to current year presetatlon.

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors of
Vishvaraj Envirgnment Private Limited

Caroon 7& Zﬂ@,—z@g

Arun Lakhani Stdhaartha Lakhanee
Managing Director Directar
DiN:- 00294583 DIN: 03610562

Bz

Prace : Nagpur Suresh Agiwal
Date: 20th September 2023 Chief Financial Officer
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